# औपचारिक शिक्षा के बाहर अधिगम सेवाएँ — सेवा अपेक्षाएं

IS/ISO 29993: 2017

## **Learning Services Outside Formal Education** — Service Requirements



भारतीय मानक ब्यूरो BUREAU OF INDIAN STANDARDS मानक भवन, 9 बहादुरशाह ज़फर मार्ग, नई दिल्ली - 110002 मानकः पथप्रदर्शकः 🗸 MANAK BHAVAN, 9 BAHADUR SHAH ZAFAR MARG **NEW DELHI-110002** 

www.bis.gov.in www.standardsbis.in

#### NATIONAL FOREWORD

This Indian Standard which is identical with ISO 29993: 2017 'Learning services outside formal education — Service requirements.' issued by the International Organization for Standardization (ISO) was adopted by the Bureau of Indian Standards on recommendation of the Higher Education, Skill Development and Related Services Sectional Committee and approval of the Services Sector Division Council.

The text of ISO Standard has been approved as suitable for publication as an Indian Standard without deviations. Certain terminologies and conventions are, however, not identical to those used in Indian Standards. Attention is particularly drawn to the following:

- a) Wherever the words 'International Standard' appear referring to this standard, they should be read as 'Indian Standard'.
- b) Comma (,) has been used as a decimal marker, while in Indian Standards, the current practice is to use a point (.) as the decimal marker.

## **Contents**

Page

1	duction	i	
1	Scope		
2	Normative references		
3	Terms and definitions		
4	General information provided by the LSP		
5	Proposal development		
6	Information provided prior to acquisition of the learning service		
7	Needs analysis		
8	Design of the learning service		
9	Information about the learning service for enrolled learners or their sponsors		
10	Service delivery  10.1 Staff engaged in the delivery of learning services  10.2 Learning material  10.3 Learning environment		
11	Facilitators		
12	Assessment of learning		
13	Monitoring and evaluation of the learning service		
14	Invoicing		
Biblio	ography	1	
	IS IN OR SIMIRPU		

This page has been intentionally left blank



## Introduction

This document is intended to provide a generic frame of reference for quality learning services outside formal education by specifying its various elements and delivery.

The structure of this document reflects a typical sequence of experiences of learners and sponsors in a prototypical learning service, including advertising, information provided prior to acquisition of the service, needs analysis, design, assessment and evaluation.

However, the way in which the learning service is planned and delivered can vary depending on the context. The learning service provider (LSP) can implement a management system designed to ensure consistent delivery of service and conformity with this document.

This page has been intentionally left blank



IS/ISO 29993: 2017

## Indian Standard

# LEARNING SERVICES OUTSIDE FORMAL EDUCATION — SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

## 1 Scope

This document specifies requirements for learning services outside formal education, including all types of life-long learning (e.g. vocational training and in-company training, either outsourced or inhouse). These include any learning services provided by a learning service provider (LSP) that are addressed to learners themselves, as well as to sponsors who are acquiring the services on behalf of the learners. The key features of these kinds of services are that the goals of learning are defined and the services are evaluated, and that they involve interaction with the learner. The learning can be face-to-face, mediated by technology, or a blend of both.

In cases where the learning service provider is part of an organization that delivers products (i.e. goods and services) in addition to learning services, this document only applies to learning services.

This document is not aimed at schools, colleges and universities providing learning services as part of a formal education system, but it can be useful to them as a tool for reflection and self-evaluation.

#### 2 Normative references

There are no normative references in this document.

#### 3 Terms and definitions

For the purposes of this document, the following terms and definitions apply.

ISO and IEC maintain terminological databases for use in standardization at the following addresses:

- ISO Online browsing platform: available at <a href="http://www.iso.org/obp">http://www.iso.org/obp</a>
- IEC Electropedia: available at <a href="http://www.electropedia.org/">http://www.electropedia.org/</a>

#### 3.1

#### assessment

gathering of data to determine the *learning* (3.9) outcomes of an individual *learner* (3.8) or group of learners

#### 3.2

## blended learning

combination of different modes of *learning* (3.9)

Note 1 to entry: Modes of learning include face-to-face learning, IT-supported learning, among others.

[SOURCE: ISO 29991:2014, 2.4, modified]

#### 3.3

#### competence

ability to apply knowledge and skills to achieve intended results

#### 3.4

#### curriculum

plan of study prepared by the *learning service provider* (3.13) which describes the aims, content, *learning resources* (3.11), and *learning* (3.9) outcomes

#### 3.5

#### evaluation

systematic gathering of information, including the results of assessment (3.1) and monitoring (3.14), in order to make decisions about possible adjustments to the learning service (3.12)

#### 3.6

#### facilitator

person who works with *learners* (3.8) to assist them with *learning* (3.9)

Note 1 to entry: A *facilitator* (3.6) is also often referred to as a teacher, a trainer, a coach, a tutor or a mentor.

[SOURCE: ISO 29990:2010, 2.8]

#### 3.7

#### interested party

individual, group or organization with a direct or indirect interest in the *learning service* (3.12), including its management and outcomes, or the processes involved, or both

[SOURCE: ISO 29990:2010, 2.9]

#### 3.8

#### learner

person engaged in *learning* (3.9)

[SOURCE: ISO 29990:2010, 2.11]

#### 3.9

#### learning

acquiring knowledge, behaviour, skills, values, preferences or understanding

[SOURCE: ISO 29990:2010, 2.12]

#### 3.10

#### learning environment

classrooms, multimedia rooms and other physical or virtual spaces used for *learning* (3.9)

#### 3.11

#### learning resource

material, environment, human resource, information or other asset that can be drawn on by the *learning service provider* (3.13) in order to facilitate *learning* (3.9) effectively

## 3.12

#### learning service

sequence of activities designed to enable *learning* (3.9)

[SOURCE: ISO 29990:2010, 2.13, modified]

#### 3.13

#### learning service provider

#### LSP

organization or individual providing *learning services* (3.12) outside formal education, including any associates involved in the provision of the learning service

[SOURCE: ISO 29990:2010, 2.14, modified]

#### 3.14

#### monitoring

continuous examination of progress achieved during the implementation of the *learning service* (3.12) to track conformity with the plan and to take necessary decisions to improve performance

IS/ISO 29993: 2017

#### 3.15

#### sponsor

organization or individual that acquires *learning services* (3.12) on behalf of *learners* (3.8), that provides financial or other support for them, or that has a vested interest in the outcome of the *learning* (3.9)

Note 1 to entry: Sponsors include corporations, government agencies and individuals.

[SOURCE: ISO 29990:2010, 2.17, modified]

## 4 General information provided by the LSP

- **4.1** Prior to enrolment, learners and interested parties need information about the learning services in order to make an informed decision.
- **4.2** Information provided by the LSP shall be accessible, up-to-date, accurate and legible. This information shall include at least the following elements:
- a) name, address of headquarters, contact details, and locations where the learning services are provided;
- b) key management staff;
- c) description of the main learning services offered by the LSP;
- d) qualification or experience of facilitators in charge of the learning service, or both;
- e) teaching methods;
- f) description of learning environment and learning resources;
- g) any certifications, awards, qualification and accreditation offered.

## 5 Proposal development

- **5.1** When provided, a proposal enables the learners or sponsors to make an informed decision regarding the acquisition of the learning service.
- **5.2** Prior to developing the proposal, the LSP shall take appropriate steps to understand the learning request, its context and any logistical factors. This proposal shall include at least the following:
- a) the objectives and targets of the proposed learning services;
- b) the capacity of the LSP to address the client's needs (e.g. client references, technical characteristics, facilitators profile, example of similar programmes);
- c) the teaching and assessment methods to be used by the LSP in delivering the learning service;
- d) the price, terms and conditions.

## 6 Information provided prior to acquisition of the learning service

Before agreeing to the acquisition of the learning service, the interested parties shall be provided with the following information, as applicable:

- a) the title and objectives of the learning service;
- b) any prerequisites, technical or otherwise, such as a required level of competence;

- c) dates, location, duration and timetable;
- d) the proposed number of hours of instruction and how these are divided between different modes of learning (e.g. face-to-face learning, blended learning, IT-supported learning);
- e) the teaching methods and the means of assessment to be used;
- f) required software licenses and technical equipment;
- g) tuition fees, examination fees, the purchase of learning materials (e.g. books, software, worksheets), any other charges and terms and conditions of payment;
- h) cancellation, withdrawal and refund policies;
- i) the procedures used for obtaining feedback about the satisfaction of learners (and, where applicable, of their sponsors), as well as for handling their requests, suggestions and complaints;
- j) the profile of the facilitators assigned to the learning service, such as their teaching qualifications, teaching experience and background.

## 7 Needs analysis

- **7.1** Understanding the needs of learners is a key factor in the learning service as it ensures that the objectives, programme, content and assessment methods meet those needs.
- **7.2** Prior to delivering learning services, the learning needs shall be analysed by qualified staff in order to orientate learning services effectively within the specified scope of the learning service.
- **7.3** The intended outcomes of the learning services shall:
- a) be detailed, measureable and understandable to the learner (and, if applicable, to the sponsors);
- b) refer to a widely-known national or international scale, if available.
- **7.4** The needs analysis shall determine:
- a) the goals and requirements of learners and sponsors;
- b) the desired level of competence and the preferred time frame;
- c) the purposes for which, and contexts in which, the learner requires the desired level of competence after the completion of the course (e.g. socially, in the domain of work or study);
- d) the learner's current level of competence;
  - NOTE 1 Techniques such as self-assessment, internal or third party tests can be used for this purpose.
- e) other aspects of the learner's background and situation (e.g. age, relevant education and training history, prior learning, professional experience, language, culture, literacy level, cognitive and physical abilities).
  - NOTE 2 ISO/TR 22411:2008 provides guidelines on services to address the needs of older persons and persons with disabilities.
- **7.5** In the context of work-related training, interested parties shall be consulted on how the competences acquired are expected to be applied in the workplace and what they consider possible indicators of success.

- **7.6** The results of the needs analysis shall be disclosed and agreed upon between the interested parties before the design and delivery of the learning service.
- **7.7** Facilitators shall be fully informed about the results of the needs analysis.
- **7.8** Information gathered about learners shall be only used for the purpose of providing the learning service. Information shall only be disclosed with the learner's consent.

## 8 Design of the learning service

- **8.1** Following the needs analysis, the design of the learning service consists of developing a curriculum, learning materials and means of assessment and evaluation.
- NOTE One approach to the design of learning services is Instructional Systems Design (ISD)<sup>2</sup>).
- **8.2** Curriculum design and development shall be carried out by facilitators who are experienced or trained in the design and development of curriculum for learning services.
- **8.3** In the design of the learning service, the following shall be taken into account:
- a) the results of the needs analysis (see 7.4);
- b) the agreed-upon goals (see 7.6);
- c) the proposed intensity and duration of the course, and the modes of learning (e.g. face-to-face learning, blended learning, IT-supported learning);
- d) the intended learning outcomes;
- e) the intended means of assessment (see 12.1);
- f) the ratio of facilitators to learners;
- g) the methods, resources, and responsibilities to optimize the transfer of learning, if applicable;
- h) the type and content of a certificate of completion to be issued;
- i) any relevant contractual elements;
- j) the intended procedure of monitoring and evaluation (see <u>13.2</u>).
- **8.4** Learning materials shall be:
- a) in line with the designed curriculum and with the selected modes of learning;
- b) authentic and up-to-date reflecting current application of the subject being learned, outside the course;
- c) selected taking into account social and cultural needs, as well as the background of the learners.
- **8.5** The curriculum, learning resources, the means of assessment and evaluation shall be disclosed to learners or the interested parties, and to facilitators.
- **8.6** The roles and responsibilities of the LSP, the learners and the interested parties relating to the delivery of the learning service and to the monitoring and assessment of learning shall be clearly specified.

<sup>2)</sup> Information on ISD is available at the following site: <a href="www.instructionaldesign.org/">www.instructionaldesign.org/</a>.

- **8.7** The curriculum, learning and assessment materials shall be reviewed at least annually.
- **8.8** The design shall take into account the results of evaluations of any prior similar learning services delivered by the LSP.
- **8.9** Sources and copy rights of learning resources used or developed by the LSP shall be cited or acknowledged.

## 9 Information about the learning service for enrolled learners or their sponsors

Commencing with, or prior to delivery of the learning service, learners (or, where applicable, their sponsors) shall be informed in writing of the details, terms and conditions of the learning service, as specified in <u>Clause 4</u>. Additional information may include the following:

- a) the responsibilities of each party (e.g. the learners, LSPs, facilitators);
- b) the processes and schedule for assessing learning;
- c) the LSP's designated contact person(s);
- d) procedures for complaints, suggestions and dispute resolution;
- e) support for learning, such as access to library, self-directed computer-assisted learning, help desk, counselling services, dictionaries, reference books and mentoring.

## 10 Service delivery

#### 10.1 Staff engaged in the delivery of learning services

- **10.1.1** The service shall be delivered by facilitators who are qualified and trained in delivering the learning service in question and are trained in the use of the methods and materials.
- **10.1.2** Other staff engaged in the delivery of the learning service shall have the competence and qualifications required to accomplish their tasks.
- **10.1.3** If substitution is required, arrangements shall be made to ensure that qualified facilitators are available, and that such facilitators are guided in the preparation and delivery of the learning service.

#### **10.2 Learning material**

- **10.2.1** Learning materials shall be available to learners in sufficient quantity. Learners or their sponsors shall be guided in the purchase of those that are needed.
- **10.2.2** Facilitators and learners shall be informed of relevant rules about the photocopying and use of printed and digital materials.
- NOTE Many countries have strict rules about copyright and the reproduction and use of printed and digital materials, or arrangements for licensing the controlled use of such materials by LSPs. These rules can apply to materials developed by the LSP based on already published works.

## **10.3 Learning environment**

**10.3.1** In cases where the LSP is responsible for providing or selecting the learning environment, the LSP shall ensure that it is conducive to learning. If the LSP does not have control over the learning environment, the LSP shall specify minimum requirements for it.

IS/ISO 29993: 2017

- **10.3.2** The learning environment shall be ergonomic and well-maintained. It shall also be:
- a) large enough to accommodate the number of learners enrolled in the groups as well as their facilitators;
- b) laid out in such a way as to facilitate interactive learning, taking into account the needs of the learners concerned;
- c) well-lit and clean;
- d) heated or cooled, if necessary, and well ventilated;
- e) protected or insulated from noise interference;
- f) equipped with learning aids and tools (e.g. as audio, video, projection devices, information technology equipment, flip charts, flash cards, models, puppets) relevant to the curriculum.
- **10.3.3** The necessary safety facilities and equipment shall be put in place and maintained, and potential safety hazards in the learning environment shall be minimized. Procedures for dealing with emergencies and security issues shall be made known to facilitators, to other staff and to learners.

#### 11 Facilitators

- **11.1** Facilitators shall be either:
- a) experienced and have qualifications/training in teaching that are/is recognized within the country where the LSP offers its services; or
- b) supervised by experienced facilitators with qualifications/training.
- NOTE Professional qualifications can be recognized by, for example, a governmental authority, an industry-created self-regulatory body, or an accredited university or college. In the absence of such recognition bodies, professional qualification can be deemed acceptable by those LSPs in the country providing courses in the relevant subject areas.
- **11.2** All facilitators shall have the necessary competences in the relevant subject or skill areas to undertake the teaching and related duties assigned to them.
- **11.3** Facilitators shall participate in professional development.

NOTE Professional development can include:

- learning and teaching principles, sound practice and latest research in learning and teaching methods relevant to the curriculum;
- teaching competences, resources relevant to the curriculum, including instructional and informational technologies;
- competence in using learning resources relevant to the learning services;
- practical experience in subject matter;
- competence in classroom management;
- assessment for the subject being learned.
- **11.4** Professional development plans shall be established. These shall take into account (but not be limited to) assigned tasks and responsibilities, the results of the evaluation of the learning service and the facilitators' own views about their professional development needs.

## 12 Assessment of learning

- **12.1** In designing or selecting assessments, the following aspects shall be considered:
- a) intended use of the assessment;
- b) knowledge, skills and abilities to be measured;
- c) standards to be measured against;
- d) methods of assessment;
- e) scoring and reporting;
- f) interested parties involved in or affected by the assessment.
- **12.2** Prior to, or at the beginning of the course, an assessment shall be made of the learner's level of competence in the subject to be learned.
- NOTE For the assessment of the learner's level of competence, see 7.4, bullet d).
- 12.3 The progress of learners shall be assessed throughout and at the end of the course.
- NOTE For examples of the assessment, see <u>7.4</u>, bullet d).
- **12.4** Learners or their sponsors shall, upon request, receive a certificate of completion, which shall include (but not be limited to) the following information:
- a) title and objectives of the learning service;
- b) number of hours of instruction;
- c) level of achievement.
- **12.5** Access to assessment results shall be given only to those with established authority or legitimate consent to view the information with regard for principles of fairness, transparency and confidentiality.

## 13 Monitoring and evaluation of the learning service

- **13.1** Regular monitoring and evaluation shall be carried out in order to determine whether the learning service is meeting its objectives.
- **13.2** In designing the processes for monitoring and evaluation, the following aspects shall be considered:
- a) scope;
- b) goals;
- c) means of monitoring and evaluation, including rationale, criteria, instruments and schedule;
- d) interested parties involved in or affected by monitoring and evaluation.
- **13.3** Service evaluation shall include (but not be limited to) the following:
- a) fulfilment of learning needs;
- b) learning and teaching methods;
- c) adequacy of learning material and other resources;

- d) logistics and organization of the learning service.
- **13.4** Procedures for monitoring and evaluation shall include:
- a) periodic observation of teaching and learning for quality assurance purposes;
- b) review of assessment results and the alignment of these results with the agreed-upon goals of the learning service, as developed in the needs analysis. For this purpose, assessment of learning shall allow the compilation, comparison and analysis of assessment results;
  - NOTE For the assessment of learning, see <u>12.3</u> and <u>12.4</u>.
- c) analysis of the level of satisfaction of learners and sponsors with the learning service, as well as their feedback and suggestions for improving the quality of the learning service;
- d) analysis of enrolment, attendance and attrition.
- **13.5** Such monitoring and evaluation shall be conducted by qualified persons.
- **13.6** Data sets and reports resulting from monitoring and evaluation shall be clear and transparent. Reports shall clearly describe the findings and the rationale in light of the learning service objectives.
- **13.7** Any complaints and claims shall be dealt with within an agreed timeframe to provide redress or explanation.
- **13.8** The results of monitoring and evaluation shall be taken into account in implementing improvements and changes to the learning service, such as in the curriculum, course programmes, teaching methods and professional development.

## 14 Invoicing

JEVELOP

- **14.1** Invoices for the learning service shall be clear and shall contain all the details needed to enable learners (or, where applicable, their sponsors) to understand precisely what is being invoiced.
- **14.2** The LSP shall provide the learner or the sponsor with proof of payment if requested.

## **Bibliography**

- [1] ISO 21001<sup>3)</sup>, Educational organizations Management systems for educational organizations Requirements with guidance for use
- [2] ISO/TR 22411:2008, Ergonomics data and guidelines for the application of ISO/IEC Guide 71 to products and services to address the needs of older persons and persons with disabilities
- [3] ISO 29990:2010, Learning services for non-formal education and training Basic requirements for service providers
- [4] ISO 29991:2014, Language learning services outside formal education Requirements

FOR BIS INTERNAL USE. TO BE ONLY DEVELOPMENT PURPOSE ONLY

<sup>3)</sup> Under preparation. Stage at the time of publication: ISO/DIS 21001:2017.

# This page has been intentionally left blank



#### **Bureau of Indian Standards**

BIS is a statutory institution established under the *Bureau of Indian Standards Act*, 2016 to promote harmonious development of the activities of standardization, marking and quality certification of goods and attending to connected matters in the country.

#### Copyright

BIS has the copyright of all its publications. No part of these publications may be reproduced in any form without the prior permission in writing of BIS. This does not preclude the free use, in the course of implementing the standard, of necessary details, such as symbols and sizes, type or grade designations. Enquiries relating to copyright be addressed to the Director (Publications), BIS.

#### **Review of Indian Standards**

Amendments are issued to standards as the need arises on the basis of comments. Standards are also reviewed periodically; a standard along with amendments is reaffirmed when such review indicates that no changes are needed; if the review indicates that changes are needed, it is taken up for revision. Users of Indian Standards should ascertain that they are in possession of the latest amendments or edition by referring to the latest issue of 'BIS Catalogue' and 'Standards: Monthly Additions'.

This Indian Standard has been developed from Doc No.: SSD 04 (17255).

## **Amendments Issued Since Publication**

Amend No.	Date of Issue	Text Affected
		15F. C
		0 010 11
		VIIIL VE A.

#### **BUREAU OF INDIAN STANDARDS**

#### Headquarters:

Manak Bhavan, 9 Banadur Shan Zalar Marg, New Deilir 110002	
Telephones: 2323 0131, 2323 3375, 2323 9402	Website: www.bis.gov.in

,				,	,
Regional Offices:					
Central	: Manak Bhavan, 9 Bahadur Shah NEW DELHI 110002	Zafar Marg		$\left\{ \right.$	2323 7617 2323 3841
Eastern	: 1/14 C.I.T. Scheme VII M, V.I.P. R KOLKATA 700054	oad, Kankurgach	ıi {	2337 8499, 2337 8626,	2337 8561 2337 9120
Northern	: Plot No. 4-A, Sector 27-B, Madhy CHANDIGARH 160019	a Marg		$\left\{ \right.$	265 0206 265 0290
Southern	: C.I.T. Campus, IV Cross Road, C	HENNAI 600113	{	2254 1216, 2254 2519,	2254 1442 2254 2315
Western	: Manakalaya, E9 MIDC, Marol, An MUMBAI 400093	dheri (East)	{	2832 9295, 2832 7891,	2832 7858 2832 7892
Branches	: AHMEDABAD. BENGALURU.	BHOPAL. E	BHUBANESHW	AR. COIN	/IBATORE.

**Branches**: AHMEDABAD. BENGALURU. BHOPAL. BHUBANESHWAR. COIMBATORE. DEHRADUN. DURGAPUR. FARIDABAD. GHAZIABAD. GUWAHATI.

HYDERABAD. JAIPUR. JAMMU. JAMSHEDPUR. KOCHI. LUCKNOW. NAGPUR. PARWANOO. PATNA. PUNE. RAIPUR. RAJKOT. VISAKHAPATNAM.